# Survival Strategies For An Attack Against America

Andrew North
Revised October 2024

This book is designed to help people become aware of the growing probability of impending doom, potential catastrophic nature events and the likelihood of a possible terror attack.

## **Table of Contents**

IntroductionIntroduction	5
Why Cities Are at Greater Risk	6
Preparing for the Unknown	7
What This Book Offers	8
A Mindset of Preparedness, Not Fear	9
Part 1: The Threats We Face	
1. Potential Attack Types and Probability	9
2. High-Risk Cities	10
3. FEMA's Response Limitations	
4. Military Preparedness: Insights from My Experience	ce
The First 72 Hours – What to Do When the Attack Hits	12
1. Stay Calm and Assess the Situation	13
2. Evasion Techniques: How to Stay Invisible	13
Let me elaborate on some of these below:	
Dress to Blend In	14
Move with Purpose, Not Panic	16
Helping Others: A Shadowed Goal	17
Avoid Large Crowds	18
What to Do If You Find Yourself Caught in a Crowd.	19
Sticking to the Shadows	21
1. Use Natural Shadows and Dimly Lit Areas	22
2. Move During Low-Visibility Hours	22
3. Avoid Major Landmarks and Roads	22
4. Be Aware of Your Sound Profile	23
Avoiding Unnecessary Confrontations	23
1. Blend in with the Crowd	23
2. Keep a Low Profile	24
3. De-escalate Whenever Possible	24
4. Don't Become a Leader or a Focal Point	25
5. Avoid Groups with Desperate or Violent Intentions	25
3. First Objective: Meet Up with Loved Ones	
4 Escape the City	26

5. Evasion When Traveling on Foot	27
6. Gather Supplies Along the Way	
Part 3: Urban Survival Tactics	
1. Finding Water in the City	28
2. Navigating Without GPS or Communication	
3. Securing Shelter in an Urban Environment	
4. Food Procurement in the City	
5. Self-Defense and Avoiding Violence	
6. Managing Health Without Modern Infrastructure	
1. Vehicle Emergency Kit (Get-Home Kit)	
Key Items:	
Strategy for Use:	
1. Long-Term Food Storage	
Popular Prepper Food Storage Tactics:	
Stockpile Essentials:	
2. Water Storage and Purification	
Popular Prepper Water Storage Tactics:	
Additional Water Collection Strategies:	
3. Cooking Without Electricity	
4. Sanitation and Hygiene	
5. First-Aid and Medical Supplies	
6. Defense and Security	
7. Power and Light	
Final Thoughts Regarding This List	
Get to the Mountains Kit: Trailer as Basecamp	
Key Items for Your Trailer:	
Get to the Mountains Kit: Backpacking Setup	
Key Items for Backpack Survival:	
Packing and Strategy for Your Get to the Mountains Kit	
The Importance of HAM Radio in Emergency Situation	
1. HAM Radios Are Reliable When Other Systems F	
2. No License Needed to Listen or Use in Emergencie	
3. Long-Distance Communication	
4. Community of Support	
5. Powering and Maintaining HAM Radios	
Conclusion: A Must-Have Tool for Emergencies	
Part 4: Long-Term Survival	
<b>U</b> · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

1. Dealing with Supply Chain Collapse	53
Strategies for Securing Food:	53
Bartering and Trading:	
2. Water Sustainability	
Key Strategies for Water Procurement:	
3. Managing Health and Hygiene	
Health Management:	
First-Aid and Medical Care:	55
4. Surviving Social Chaos	
Strategies for Avoiding Conflict:	56
Self-Defense:	
5. Long-Term Shelter Solutions	
Strategies for Securing Long-Term Shelter:	
Conclusion: Long-Term Survival Is About Adaptation	
Part 5: Rebuilding After the Crisis	
1. Assessing the Damage and Immediate Priorities	
Steps for Assessment:	
2. Community Efforts: Rebuilding Together	
Rebuilding Infrastructure:	
Creating a Sustainable Community:	
3. Rebuilding Your Life and Finances	
Rebuilding Financially:	
Adjusting to a New Economy:	
4. Psychological Recovery and Mental Health	
Coping Mechanisms:	
5. Preparing for Future Disasters	62
Reinforce Your Supplies and Skills:	62
Support Your Community's Resilience:	62
Conclusion: Rebuilding Requires Resilience and Unity	
1. Communication Breakdown and Delayed Response	64
2. Inadequate Evacuation Plans and Vulnerable Population	
-	64
3. The Importance of Self-Sufficiency and Community	
Preparedness	65
4. The Need for Long-Term Recovery and Community	
Rebuilding	
5. Critical Role of Mental Health Support	
Conclusion: Key Takeaways from Hurricane Katrina	67

Conclusion: A Call to Preparedness	67
Preparedness is Personal	68
Preparedness is Communal	68
Preparedness is Continuous	69
Preparedness is a Mindset	70
Final Thoughts: A Call to Preparedness	70
Bonus Survival Checklist	71
Water & Hydration:	71
Food & Cooking:	71
Shelter & Warmth:	
First Aid & Medical:	72
Tools & Equipment:	72
Clothing:	72
Hygiene & Sanitation:	73
Communication & Navigation:	73
Self-Defense & Security:	73
Power & Light:	74
Books and Guides:	74
Online Courses and Tutorials:	75
Websites and Communities:	76
YouTube Channels:	77
Apps for Emergency Preparedness:	

## Introduction

#### Why Urban Survival Matters in the Modern World

Cities are vibrant centers of life, culture, and opportunity—but they are also high-risk zones during times of national crisis. In a world of ever-evolving threats, from cyber attacks to nuclear events, major metropolitan areas represent prime targets. New York, Los Angeles, Chicago, and other bustling cities are hubs of commerce, transportation, and government infrastructure. For millions of people, these cities are home. But what happens when the very elements that make a city thrive—large populations, complex infrastructure, and dense housing—turn it into a survival challenge?

The goal of this book is not to incite fear but to empower. Preparedness is not paranoia—it is peace of mind. While rural residents often have greater access to resources and open land, those living in urban environments face unique challenges. Skyscrapers, public transit systems, crowded streets, and limited space mean that survival in a city requires a different mindset. This book is designed to provide practical, realistic strategies for people living in urban areas, helping them navigate and survive potential crises. Whether you live in an apartment, condominium, or high-rise building, you can take meaningful steps to protect yourself and your loved ones.

#### Why Cities Are at Greater Risk

Cities are attractive targets in times of war or disaster for several reasons:

- **High Population Density:** A single catastrophic event can affect millions.
- **Critical Infrastructure Hub:** Power grids, water systems, and transportation networks are often centralized in urban centers, making them vulnerable to attack or disruption.
- Symbolic Value: Iconic landmarks and government institutions are concentrated in cities, making them symbolic targets.
- Limited Resources in a Crisis: With little room for agriculture and storage, urban areas depend heavily on external supply chains. If those chains break, food and water supplies can dwindle quickly.

Knowing that cities are vulnerable isn't a cause for despair—it's a call to action. Surviving in a city during a national crisis will require strategic thinking, careful preparation, and a calm, adaptive mindset. The methods outlined in this book are intended to give you the confidence to face these challenges head-on.

#### **Preparing for the Unknown**

It's impossible to predict every scenario, but a few common types of attacks could significantly disrupt life in major metropolitan areas:

 Cyberattacks that cripple financial systems, utilities, or communication networks.

- **EMP** (**Electromagnetic Pulse**) **events** that knock out electronics and power grids.
- Terrorist attacks targeting symbolic or strategic locations.
- **Nuclear threats** that create both immediate and long-term fallout zones.
- Biological or chemical attacks designed to sow fear and chaos.

Regardless of the event, the impact will be felt most acutely in large cities. From traffic gridlocks to communication blackouts, city dwellers must prepare for situations where basic services—like electricity, food, and medical care—may not be available for days or even weeks.

#### **What This Book Offers**

This book will provide you with a comprehensive roadmap for surviving in the aftermath of a national crisis. The focus is on practical, actionable advice tailored specifically to the challenges of city life. You will learn:

- How to react in the first 72 hours of a crisis, when decisions are most critical.
- When to shelter in place versus when to evacuate—and how to do so effectively.
- Strategies for securing your home or apartment in a densely populated environment.
- Ways to find water, food, and essential resources when supply chains collapse.
- Mental and emotional strategies to maintain hope and resilience in difficult times.

Whether you're facing an immediate attack or preparing for a long-term disruption, the tactics in this book will help you stay one step ahead. Survival is not just about stockpiling supplies—it's about developing the skills and mindset necessary to navigate a chaotic and unpredictable world. With the right preparation, you won't just survive—you will be ready to thrive in the face of uncertainty.

#### A Mindset of Preparedness, Not Fear

It's natural to feel uneasy when thinking about worst-case scenarios, but preparedness is not about dwelling on fear. It's about facing reality with a plan. The more prepared you are, the more you can reduce the chaos and panic that often accompany crises. No matter the type of attack or disaster, your chances of survival are greatly improved when you take steps now to protect yourself.

This book aims to empower you with knowledge. It's about becoming proactive rather than reactive, confident rather than fearful. Living in a major metropolitan area doesn't mean you have to be vulnerable. With the right preparation, you can ensure that you, your family, and your community emerge from any crisis stronger than ever.

#### **Part 1: The Threats We Face**

#### 1. Potential Attack Types and Probability

Given current global tensions and historical patterns, the following attacks represent the most plausible threats:

- **Cyberattacks** (80% chance within the next decade): These aim to disable essential infrastructure, including power grids and financial systems.
- **Electromagnetic Pulse (EMP) attacks** (20–30% chance): An EMP attack could wipe out all electronic systems over a large area. While less probable, its impact would be devastating.
- Terrorism or Asymmetric Warfare (30-40% chance):
   Cities like New York, Washington D.C., and Los Angeles remain prime targets due to their economic and political importance.
- Nuclear or Radiological Attacks (10–15% chance): Though less likely, they are catastrophic scenarios. The cities most at risk include New York, Washington D.C., and San Francisco, based on political and symbolic value.

#### 2. High-Risk Cities

Cities with significant federal infrastructure, financial centers, or dense populations are most likely to be targeted. Key examples include:

- New York City Symbolic of U.S. financial power
- Washington D.C. Political and governmental center
- San Francisco & Los Angeles Economic hubs and high-tech centers
- Chicago & Houston Industrial and energy infrastructures

#### 3. FEMA's Response Limitations

Based on FEMA's National Response Framework, the federal government aims to respond within 72 hours of a disaster, but real-world delays are common. During large-scale attacks, infrastructure damage and communication breakdowns can slow response efforts significantly. A high-level disaster might extend beyond FEMA's current capacity to organize relief and recovery

effectively within the target 72-hour window. After Hurricane Katrina, for example, FEMA faced delays of 4 to 5 days, highlighting the agency's vulnerability when faced with overwhelming crises. That being said, we know from previous responses for hurricanes this year, FEMA is slow to respond and they seem to sit and wait for you to interact with them to implore for help.

The purpose of this book is to help you prepare yourselves so that you don't find yourself in the bottleneck position of trying to get help with others panicking to get help prior to you.

Training programs, such as those under FEMA's **Community Emergency Response Team (CERT)** and **National Incident Management System (NIMS)**, emphasize preparedness for worst-case scenarios. However, these plans rely heavily on local-level readiness, which is often underfunded and unevenly executed across different regions.

#### 4. Military Preparedness: Insights from My Experience

Having served in the military for eight years and completed extensive disaster and emergency management training, I can confirm that official preparedness drills often reflect best-case scenarios. Yet, in reality, emergencies demand rapid problemsolving beyond the scope of training.

Trainings that focus on **logistics, communication breakdowns, and evacuation routes** are key. For example, the military's emphasis on **continuity of operations (COOP)** ensures essential functions can continue during emergencies. Many of these strategies align with FEMA's guidelines, available publicly through CERT courses and FEMA's website, which I encourage everyone to explore for personal preparedness.

During my time in the Army, I attended a class on how to handle catastrophic situations, such as large-scale civil unrest. The instructor emphasized the use of "necessary force" to control crowds or unruly individuals, even suggesting that lethal force could be warranted in some extreme cases. While there may be situations where such actions are required by those in authority, it's crucial for civilians to avoid being perceived as a threat in these high-pressure scenarios.

We've seen how law enforcement, when confronted with perceived threats, sometimes reacts with excessive force, leading to unnecessary harm. In chaotic situations, the military and other agencies will have important, difficult tasks to carry out. The best approach for civilians is to remain invisible and cooperative if confronted. This book aims to help you understand the importance of staying low-profile and evasive, especially when dealing with potentially unlawful actions by authorities who may feel threatened.

One of the military's immediate actions in crisis scenarios is the confiscation of firearms and weapons. This is something many of us disagreed with during our service, as we believed it violated the Constitution, the very document we had sworn an oath to uphold. Nonetheless, this is a reality you might face, and being aware of it could make a significant difference in your ability to stay safe.

#### Part 2: Immediate Actions for Survival

## The First 72 Hours – What to Do When the Attack Hits

In any catastrophic event, confusion and chaos are inevitable, especially in densely populated cities. People are likely to be panicked, under-prepared, and vulnerable. In this situation, it's crucial to avoid drawing attention to yourself. Being invisible is a survival skill in itself. Below, I'll outline key evasion tactics and techniques to help you navigate the first few hours of a disaster.

#### 1. Stay Calm and Assess the Situation

Before taking any action, it's essential to pause and assess what's happening around you. Many people will act irrationally out of fear, but you must remain level-headed to make rational and informed decisions. Look for immediate threats, safe exits, and observe crowd behavior. Having this mindset in everyday life is helpful. When you go to the store, for example, imagine how you would act if you needed to get out quick. Who you could afford to help and who you would want to avoid.

#### 2. Evasion Techniques: How to Stay Invisible

In a crisis, people who are visibly distressed or showing signs of vulnerability often become targets. Whether it's law enforcement, looters, or desperate individuals, you don't want to attract unnecessary attention. Here are some techniques to help you remain unnoticed:

• **Dress to Blend In**: Avoid tactical or military-style gear that might signal preparedness. Instead, dress like an average person. Muted, neutral clothing colors help you blend into your environment and avoid looking like a target. You want to be unnoticeable. You don't want to look rich, or even that you may have a gun. Be discreet but be mindful of opportunities to assist. For evil to triumph, it needs someone to be quiet. Wearing gray

tones, jeans, etc cannot be overstated here. You would not want to flaunt your favorite football team by wearing a bright red jersey. If you are, lose it.

- Move with Purpose, Not Panic: Walk confidently but not hurriedly. Don't look lost or fearful, as this could make you a target. People tend to follow those who seem to know what they're doing.
- Avoid Large Crowds: Crowds tend to gather at choke points like exits or transportation hubs. These areas are dangerous due to mob behavior, violence, or attempts by authorities to control movement. Instead, seek quieter side streets, alleyways, or lesser-known paths.
- Stick to the Shadows: Especially at night, keep to the edges of buildings, use shadows, and avoid well-lit, open areas. Take routes that are less visible and less trafficked.
- Avoid Unnecessary Confrontations: Engage with others only when necessary, and don't draw attention to your supplies or knowledge. If approached, downplay what you have and your ability to help. Keeping a low profile could prevent a confrontation.

Let me elaborate on some of these below:

## **Dress to Blend In**

In chaotic situations, how you present yourself can determine whether you're seen as a threat, a target, or just another face in the crowd. Wearing the wrong type of clothing could make you stand out, drawing unnecessary attention from both opportunists and authorities. Here are the key factors to consider when dressing to blend in:

1. Avoid Tactical or Military-Looking Gear Many preppers make the mistake of wearing tactical vests, camo patterns, or heavy-duty boots. While this gear is useful in wilderness survival, in an urban crisis it makes you look like you're either well-prepared or a potential threat. Law enforcement or military personnel might mistake you for someone looking to challenge authority, while looters or desperate civilians may see you as a resource-rich target.

Instead, opt for clothing that is nondescript and common in the environment you're in. Jeans, hoodies, and sneakers are perfect examples of urban camouflage because they don't draw attention.

- 2. **Neutral Colors** Stick to muted, neutral colors like gray, brown, dark blue, and black. Bright colors, reflective materials, or anything with logos can make you more noticeable from a distance. The goal is to avoid catching anyone's eye, especially in crowded or highly monitored areas.
- 3. **Avoid Flashy Accessories** Even in normal situations, flashy jewelry, watches, or expensive electronics can make you a target for theft. In a crisis, displaying wealth or expensive gear can be dangerous. Keep accessories minimal and practical. If you wear a watch, make sure it's something low-key that doesn't signal affluence.
- 4. **Hide Signs of Preparedness** If you are carrying a backpack or supplies, opt for a simple, non-military-style bag. A basic school backpack or an ordinary-looking tote will help you blend in. Tactical or large hiking bags can make it obvious that you have supplies, making you a target for theft or confrontation.

Likewise, conceal any tools or weapons (if you are carrying them for self-defense). An overt display of items like knives or multitools may signal that you're prepared, which could attract both those in need and those with bad intentions.

- 5. Wear Comfortable, Practical Footwear In a crisis situation, you may have to walk long distances or move quickly. While it's important to wear shoes that allow for fast, flexible movement, don't go for high-end hiking boots or overtly tactical footwear unless you're in an outdoor environment. Well-worn sneakers or casual shoes will allow you to move quietly and blend in with the average urban crowd.
- 6. Adapt to the Environment Pay attention to the general attire of people around you. If you are in a city where business attire is common, dressing too casually might make you stand out. Conversely, if you're in a more casual or rural environment, dressing too formally can also draw unwanted attention. Always adapt your appearance to the environment so that you become just another person in the crowd.

By blending in with your environment, you minimize the chances of being singled out. Your clothing and appearance should convey that you are just another individual caught in the chaos, not someone with resources or skills that could be exploited. This small but critical strategy allows you to move through dangerous situations with less risk of confrontation or harm.

## **Move with Purpose, Not Panic**

In a crisis, how you carry yourself can significantly influence how others perceive and interact with you. Walking confidently, without rushing or showing signs of fear, is critical for avoiding unwanted attention. Panic makes you a target, and visibly distressed people are often sought out by opportunistic individuals—whether they're desperate citizens looking for guidance or looters hoping to exploit vulnerability.

However, a key point to understand is that in a high-stress situation, you must prioritize your safety and the safety of your loved ones above all else. People tend to follow those who appear calm and in control, believing them to have a plan. While it's human nature to want to help others, leading a group of unprepared individuals can quickly become dangerous.

#### **Helping Others: A Shadowed Goal**

While helping others is noble, in a disaster, doing so must always remain a **secondary** or **shadowed goal if you are trying to reunite with family or loved ones**. Your primary objective is to get out safely with the people you're responsible for. Helping others, especially strangers, should only occur when it doesn't put you or your group at risk. This isn't about being selfish—it's about survival.

- Avoid Becoming a Leader of the Unprepared: If others notice your calm demeanor and follow you, they may expect you to lead them. In a crisis, being burdened by people who aren't equipped to handle the situation can slow you down, create conflict, or even turn you into a target for aggression or theft if they realize you have resources.
- **Discreet Assistance:** If you feel compelled to help others, do so in a way that doesn't expose your position or resources. For example, offer directions or advice quietly, but don't draw attention to the fact that you're well-prepared or carrying valuable supplies.

 Recognize the Risks: Helping someone openly may lead to confrontation, especially if that person feels entitled to your help or becomes aggressive out of desperation. It's important to assess each situation carefully. Sometimes, the best help you can provide is staying out of danger so that you can reach safety and offer assistance later when conditions are more stable.

## **Avoid Large Crowds**

In any chaotic situation, large crowds can be unpredictable and dangerous. Whether it's a natural disaster, public panic, or civil unrest, large groups of people tend to follow a herd mentality, where panic spreads quickly, and individuals can get caught up in stampedes or violent outbreaks. It's essential to avoid large gatherings whenever possible, as these areas are prone to rapid escalations and increased risk.

#### Why Crowds Are Dangerous:

- Mob Mentality: When panic sets in, people may act irrationally, creating chaos. Pushing, shoving, and aggressive behavior can occur, often without a clear trigger.
- Choke Points: Crowds often gather around choke points like exits, transportation hubs, or public spaces, making it difficult to move freely. These areas can become bottlenecks, where people are trapped, trampled, or crushed.
- Target Zones: Large crowds are often the focus of law enforcement, military control, or opportunistic individuals. In an urban crisis, they can become focal points for looting, rioting, or violence, making them highly dangerous.

#### What to Do If You Find Yourself Caught in a Crowd

If you accidentally find yourself in a large crowd, especially one that's becoming agitated or moving dangerously, it's crucial to take immediate steps to protect yourself.

Stay on Your Feet at All Costs. One of the most important things to remember in a crowd is never fall down. If you do, the chances of being trampled increase significantly. If you start to stumble, use anything you can —other people, walls, or barriers—to stay upright.

If you do fall, **curl into a fetal position** with your arms protecting your head and neck. This minimizes the risk of fatal injuries and makes you a smaller target for trampling.

- 2. **Move Diagonally, Not Against the Flow.** Crowds tend to move in a general direction, and the natural instinct is to try and push against it. However, moving directly against the flow will exhaust you quickly and make it more likely you'll be knocked down. Instead, move at a diagonal angle toward the edges of the crowd, where you are more likely to find an exit or escape.
  - Look for breaks in the crowd or areas where it thins out.
  - **Use the "river" method**: Imagine the crowd as a river, and you are trying to move to the shore, not upstream. Go with the flow, but gradually work your way to the outside where it's safer.
- 3. **Stay Away from Hard Barriers.** Getting trapped between a crowd and a solid object like a wall, fence, or vehicle is extremely dangerous. As people press forward, you can be crushed against these barriers with no room to escape. Always position yourself away from fixed objects,

especially if the crowd is growing or getting more aggressive.

If you find yourself near a barrier, try to move **alongside it** rather than being pinned against it.

4. **Conserve Your Energy and take DEEP BREATHS!**Crowds can become overwhelming and claustrophobic, especially if you're packed tightly. Conserve your energy by controlling your breathing and avoiding panic. Keep your arms in front of your chest to create some space for breathing.

If you panic, your breathing becomes more shallow, leading to exhaustion and poor decision-making. Focus on slow, deliberate breaths.

5. **Stay Aware of Your Surroundings.** Constantly scan the crowd for signs of danger, such as fights breaking out, police presence, or others panicking. Watch for sudden movements or changes in the flow of the crowd, as these often signal that something is wrong.

Being alert to your surroundings can give you the time needed to react before you're caught up in a dangerous situation.

- 6. **Avoid Elevation Changes.** If the crowd is moving up or down stairs, escalators, or sloped streets, be extremely cautious. Elevation changes increase the likelihood of people tripping, falling, and creating a dangerous domino effect. If you can, move away from these areas and stick to level ground.
- 7. **Do Not Scream or Draw Attention.** If you are panicked, screaming or drawing attention to yourself can worsen the situation. Others may see you as a leader and crowd toward you, or in a high-stress moment, shouting can

- provoke hostility. Instead, stay calm and focus on finding an exit quietly.
- 8. **Use Landmarks to Navigate.** When in a crowd, it's easy to lose your sense of direction. Use buildings, street signs, or other visible landmarks to orient yourself and guide you toward safer areas. Don't rely solely on the crowd's movement—find your own path out using visual cues.

#### What to Do After Escaping a Crowd

Once you've managed to exit the crowd, **take immediate stock of your situation**. Check yourself for injuries, ensure you have all your belongings, and quickly find a safe place to regroup and plan your next steps. Avoid re-entering any areas where crowds might gather again, such as emergency aid stations or transport hubs, unless absolutely necessary.

In the context of an urban disaster, these tactics can make the difference between escaping unharmed and getting caught up in a dangerous situation. Always remember: **being invisible** and **avoiding confrontation** is key to survival.

## Sticking to the Shadows

In a chaotic urban environment, sticking to the shadows is a critical tactic for avoiding detection and danger. When navigating through areas where violence, looting, or military/police activity is present, staying out of sight is your best defense. Here's how and why you should embrace this strategy:

#### 1. Use Natural Shadows and Dimly Lit Areas

Urban areas often have natural shadows, particularly at night or in early mornings, which you can use to your advantage. Side

streets, alleyways, and building perimeters typically have fewer people and are less well-lit compared to major thoroughfares.

- Avoid well-lit streets: Bright lights make you visible from a distance, potentially attracting attention from opportunistic individuals or authorities trying to control movement.
- **Use building edges or parked cars**: These can provide natural cover as you move, helping you avoid being seen by others.

#### 2. Move During Low-Visibility Hours

If possible, travel during times of low visibility, such as at dawn, dusk, or at night. Fewer people are likely to be out during these hours, and even if there are, you will blend into the environment more easily.

• **Nighttime travel**: While it's inherently riskier to move at night due to limited vision, it's also an opportunity to stay hidden from those who may want to do you harm or rob you. Carry a small flashlight, but only use it when absolutely necessary, and keep it covered or pointed downward to avoid being seen.

#### 3. Avoid Major Landmarks and Roads

Sticking to less-trafficked areas is another way to remain in the shadows. Major streets, landmarks, or open plazas are likely to be monitored, either by law enforcement, military forces, or looters looking for opportunities.

- Stick to side streets: Move through backstreets or lesserknown areas. These spots are less likely to be crowded or monitored.
- Use rooftops or underground paths: If familiar with the area, look for elevated paths like rooftops or underground

routes like subway tunnels, which can provide safer passage and help avoid crowded or dangerous streets.

#### 4. Be Aware of Your Sound Profile

Sticking to the shadows also involves minimizing your noise. Footsteps, bags rustling, or conversations can betray your position even when you're hidden visually.

- Soft-soled shoes: Wearing quiet, soft-soled footwear will reduce the sound of your footsteps, especially on concrete or urban surfaces.
- Avoid unnecessary sounds: Close bag zippers, secure loose items that could rattle, and communicate quietly with companions, using hand signals if possible to reduce noise.

## **Avoiding Unnecessary Confrontations**

In a survival situation, unnecessary confrontations can quickly escalate and jeopardize your safety. Whether you're dealing with looters, authorities, or desperate individuals, it's critical to deescalate situations or avoid them altogether. Here's how:

#### 1. Blend in with the Crowd

One of the best ways to avoid confrontation is by blending in with those around you. Don't draw attention to yourself by looking too prepared, armed, or wealthy.

- Avoid showing off resources: If you have supplies like food, water, or valuable equipment, keep them hidden.
   Flashing valuable items can make you a target for theft or aggression.
- **Dress like everyone else:** As mentioned earlier, wearing tactical gear or anything that stands out can make you a

target for opportunistic individuals or those in authority who may see you as a potential threat.

#### 2. Keep a Low Profile

Avoid engaging in conversations or actions that might draw attention to you. When in public, do not offer information or engage with strangers unless absolutely necessary.

- **Move quietly**: As you navigate, keep your body language neutral and avoid eye contact with others, especially those who seem agitated or unpredictable.
- Avoid confrontational behavior: If someone engages with you, remain calm and non-threatening. Showing fear or hostility can provoke aggression.

#### 3. De-escalate Whenever Possible

If someone confronts you or becomes aggressive, your first response should be to de-escalate the situation. Calm words, nonthreatening body language, and compliance (when appropriate) can often defuse tensions.

- Avoid aggressive postures: Keep your hands visible and avoid sudden movements. Crossed arms, clenched fists, or raised voices can escalate a situation.
- **Be agreeable but not submissive**: Sometimes agreeing with someone's demands (without fully complying) can buy you time or help you move away from the situation.

#### 4. Don't Become a Leader or a Focal Point

If people see you as prepared, they may attempt to follow you or rely on you for leadership. While helping others is admirable, in a survival situation, this can lead to unwanted attention and dangerous situations.

 Refuse leadership roles: If others attempt to follow you, gently dissuade them without making it confrontational.

- Leading unprepared people can slow you down and expose you to more risks.
- **Stay neutral**: If tensions rise between others, remain a neutral party. Do not take sides, as this could drag you into confrontations that can spiral out of control.

#### 5. Avoid Groups with Desperate or Violent Intentions

In times of crisis, desperation can lead to violence. Gangs of looters or hostile groups may form, preying on those they perceive as vulnerable or resource-rich.

- Assess groups from a distance: If you spot groups from a
  distance, evaluate their behavior before approaching. If
  they seem aggressive or disorganized, alter your route to
  avoid them.
- Use deception when necessary: If confronted, play down your resources or skills. For instance, if asked for food, offer a small portion to appear cooperative but not wealthy. The goal is to seem like you're in the same position as everyone else, rather than an outsider with resources.

**Key Takeaway: Survival Over Engagement** In any urban disaster, the key is to prioritize survival over confrontation. By sticking to the shadows and avoiding unnecessary engagement with others, you increase your chances of safely navigating the chaos. Remember, the ultimate goal is to protect yourself and your loved ones without drawing unnecessary attention, risking violence, or losing valuable time.

#### 3. First Objective: Meet Up with Loved Ones

Your primary concern should be reuniting with your family or loved ones as soon as possible. In the chaos, communication lines may fail, so it's essential to have prearranged meeting points established long before any crisis. If you haven't established one, find the most secure and accessible location and wait for a reasonable amount of time before moving on.

- Use Pre-Established Communication Methods: Cell service may be down, so radios, written notes left in hidden or agreed-upon locations, or even pre-determined signals (like marking a door with a specific symbol) can help coordinate with loved ones.
- Move Together and Stay Vigilant: Once you've gathered your group, stick together and maintain situational awareness. Ensure that everyone is aware of their surroundings and shares the responsibility of watching for threats.

#### 4. Escape the City

Once you have gathered your group and gathered some initial information about the situation, it's time to consider your options for leaving the city. Ideally, you'll want to avoid main roads, which are likely to be congested or controlled. Your objective is to reach safety as discreetly as possible, often on foot. Here's how to do it:

- Map Your Route Beforehand: Always have a physical map of the city, and if possible, plan multiple routes to the outskirts or safer zones. Look for less common exit points
   —abandoned or quieter roads, railways, or even waterways.
- **Stay Away from Major Landmarks**: These areas are likely to be targets or highly monitored by authorities.

- Choose routes through residential neighborhoods, parks, or industrial areas where fewer people may be.
- Prioritize Speed and Stealth Over Comfort: Carry only
  what you need. Pack light, but ensure you have enough
  water, food, and essential items for a 72-hour journey.
  Remember, moving swiftly and quietly is more important
  than convenience at this point.

#### 5. Evasion When Traveling on Foot

If you find yourself traveling on foot, which is often the case during disasters when transportation fails, consider the following tactics:

- Move During Low Activity Hours: If possible, travel at dawn or dusk when fewer people are out and visibility is lower. This gives you a tactical advantage while still being able to see your surroundings.
- Avoid Attention from Law Enforcement and Military:
   While the military may be on-site to provide security,
   avoid confrontation or appearing threatening. Stay
   cooperative but unremarkable, and follow directions
   without argument. This minimizes the chances of being
   perceived as a threat.
- Avoiding main roads or highways is what I would ultimately try to do. Gangs will likely take over the most lucrative sections of the city such as mainly traveled roads.

#### 6. Gather Supplies Along the Way

While escaping, you may need to gather additional supplies to sustain your group. Look for stores that are off the beaten path and less likely to be looted. Pharmacies, hardware stores, and even office buildings can have valuable resources. I do not

condone looting or theft at any time. I would avoid that. This is not the time to be a bully of any kind.

 Gather Discreetly: If you must gather supplies in populated areas, do so quietly and without drawing attention to yourself. The goal is to avoid being noticed, especially by large groups or those who are desperate.

#### **Part 3: Urban Survival Tactics**

Urban survival poses unique challenges, particularly because of the dense population, complex infrastructure, and potential for societal breakdown. Navigating a city during a crisis requires a combination of adaptability, resourcefulness, and practical knowledge. Here are the essential tactics you need to master:

#### 1. Finding Water in the City

Water is one of the most critical resources in any survival scenario, and in urban environments, clean water sources can quickly become contaminated or unavailable. Knowing where to find and how to purify water is essential.

#### • Key Sources of Water:

- Taps and Faucets: Initially, tap water may still be available, but this depends on the integrity of the water grid. Fill up every container you can once a crisis hits.
- Water Heaters: Residential and commercial water heaters hold several gallons of potable water.
- Public Fountains: Many cities have public water fountains in parks or squares. These may still be functional, especially if connected to a municipal water source.

- Swimming Pools: While the water in pools may be chemically treated, it can still be filtered and purified.
- Rooftop Rain Collection: If you have access to a rooftop, set up a makeshift system for collecting rainwater using tarps or containers.

#### • Purification Methods:

- Boiling: If you have access to heat, boiling water for at least one minute kills most bacteria and viruses.
- Water Filters: Always carry a portable water filter (like a LifeStraw or Sawyer Mini). These can filter bacteria and protozoa from natural and urban sources.
- **Chemical Purification**: Water purification tablets or household bleach (unscented, pure) can be used to disinfect water. Use 8 drops of bleach per gallon and let it sit for 30 minutes before drinking.

#### 2. Navigating Without GPS or Communication

When the grid goes down, you'll likely lose access to GPS, cell towers, and electronic communication. Navigating a city without these tools requires both preparation and improvisation.

- **Carry a Map**: A physical, up-to-date map of your city is indispensable. Mark critical locations, such as potential water sources, hospitals, police stations, and escape routes.
- **Learn Landmarks**: Familiarize yourself with key landmarks—tall buildings, rivers, bridges—that can help you orient yourself if GPS fails.
- **Track the Sun and Stars**: In extreme cases, basic knowledge of how to navigate by the sun or stars could be

- useful. The sun rises in the east and sets in the west, which can help you gauge direction.
- Alternative Communication Devices: Small hand-held radios (HAM or walkie-talkies) allow you to communicate with family members or other survivors. Keep a portable radio to stay updated on emergency broadcasts.

#### 3. Securing Shelter in an Urban Environment

Finding safe shelter is crucial, particularly in the early stages of a crisis when crowds and looters may pose a threat.

- Your Home as a Fortress: If staying at home, secure your doors and windows with heavy furniture, wooden boards, or other makeshift barricades. Create a safe room—ideally in a windowless, central location—where your family can retreat if the situation outside worsens.
- Abandoned Buildings: If your home isn't safe, look for abandoned or vacant buildings. Warehouses, office buildings, and industrial areas tend to be less crowded and may offer safer shelter.
- **Stay Hidden**: If looters or other dangerous groups are active, it's vital to remain as quiet and undetected as possible. Use heavy drapes or blankets to block out light, and avoid making excessive noise.

#### 4. Food Procurement in the City

Cities are full of food sources, but they can quickly become scarce. You'll need to think resourcefully about finding and storing food during a crisis.

 Initial Supplies: Grocery stores, restaurants, and convenience stores will likely be looted early on. Try to gather supplies before chaos sets in, but avoid places where crowds are forming.

- **Foraging**: In urban settings, look for edible plants in parks or on rooftops. Many cities have community gardens or fruit-bearing trees in public areas.
- Bartering: As supplies run low, bartering becomes an essential survival tactic. Be ready to trade non-essential items for food, water, or other critical resources. Small, valuable items like lighters, batteries, or even alcohol can be excellent barter goods.

#### 5. Self-Defense and Avoiding Violence

Survival in an urban crisis means being ready to defend yourself while avoiding unnecessary violence or confrontation. The goal is to stay invisible and evade conflict wherever possible.

- Everyday Items as Weapons: In a pinch, objects like kitchen knives, hammers, or crowbars can be used to defend yourself. However, using these items in selfdefense should always be a last resort.
- Know Your Exits: Always have a mental map of potential escape routes from your current location. If violence breaks out, knowing how to get out quickly can save your life.
- **Avoid Aggression**: Avoid engaging in confrontations. If someone threatens you, it's often better to give up minor valuables than to escalate the situation.

#### 6. Managing Health Without Modern Infrastructure

Medical care will likely be difficult to come by in a crisis. It's essential to have basic first-aid knowledge and supplies to manage injuries, illnesses, or chronic conditions.

• **First-Aid Kit**: A well-stocked first-aid kit with bandages, antiseptic wipes, painkillers, and any necessary prescription medications is essential. If you have medical

conditions, stockpile extra medication in your home kit and vehicle kit.

- Improvised Medical Care: Learn how to clean and dress wounds, as well as how to treat common ailments like dehydration, infections, or burns with improvised methods.
- Hygiene: Sanitation is critical. Without clean water, illness can spread quickly. Always carry soap, hand sanitizer, and water purification tools to maintain hygiene and reduce the risk of infection.

### **Survival Kits**

Everyone boasts of having their own personally outfitted survival kit. Although having a commercially made one could be nice, I would absolutely insist that any of my friends or family designs their own based on the following information. Every person's needs are different and the situation that you may find yourself in is different than mine. I like to group my survival kits into three different categories:

- 1-Vehicle Survival Kit (The Get Home Kit)
- 2- Stay at Home Kit
- 3- Flee to the Mountains Kit

Let me elaborate on these and I would like to have you consider what your kit would look like, what it would need based on your needs and skills or lack there of! Don't worry, we all lack in something!

#### 1. Vehicle Emergency Kit (Get-Home Kit)

The goal of this kit is to help you get home safely, especially if you're caught away from your home during a crisis. Since you'll likely be moving quickly, the kit should be compact and focus on mobility. You want items that will keep you safe and secure as you navigate back to your home base. In the back of the book, I will include my lists with some extra lines for you to improve and customize it to you.

#### **Key Items:**

- Water and Purification Tablets: Include water bottles and water purification tablets or a portable water filter (like a LifeStraw). You might need to gather water on the way home if supply lines are cut off.
- **Food**: Pack non-perishable, calorie-dense snacks like energy bars, jerky, or trail mix. These should be lightweight but capable of keeping you energized. I would choose the bare minimum. You can go days without food, but not water. I like to include water with protein shake packets or something similar to mix into your water.
- First-Aid Kit: A compact kit with bandages, antiseptic
  wipes, pain relievers, and any necessary medications. You
  want something that fits easily in your car but covers
  minor injuries.
- Warmth and Shelter: Include an emergency blanket or thermal or wool blanket. You might also want a lightweight, compact tarp and some paracord to create makeshift shelter if needed.
- Fire Starter: Matches, a lighter, or a fire steel will be crucial if you need to start a fire for warmth, signaling, or cooking.

- Self-Defense: While your goal should always be to avoid conflict, having a small, discreet self-defense tool like pepper spray or a tactical knife could prove useful. But if you're like me, and may not be able to survive a fight with a bigger or more capable guy, carry a gun with at least one box of ammo. It is important to know what your state's laws are before you pack this. A local gun shop can be very helpful in this area.
- Map and Compass: If communication systems are down, GPS may be unreliable. A paper map of your city or region and a compass will help you navigate your way home.
- **Multitool**: A Swiss Army knife or Leatherman can help with a variety of tasks, from opening cans to making small repairs.
- Flashlight and Batteries: A reliable, waterproof flashlight with extra batteries is essential. Consider a hand-crank or solar-powered flashlight if you don't want to rely on batteries.
- Comfortable Walking Shoes: If you need to abandon your vehicle, having a pair of sturdy, comfortable shoes will help you cover long distances. Tie these to your kit as you may not have the immediate ability to swap shoes.
- **Hat, scarf, handkerchief, gloves:** These are useful items, but consider this a disguise or elements of one.
- Cash or something to barter with: This can be tiny
  alcohol bottles, cigarettes, cash, spare ammunition, spare
  waters, etc. I like to keep some of these item in the
  pocket of my backpack to easily get to if I need to use
  cash to get away.

#### **Strategy for Use:**

- Keep this kit in the trunk of your car at all times. Make it
  as small as possible and easy to carry because you do not
  want to take it out to make extra room for groceries and
  end up in an earthquake without it.
- If disaster strikes and you're on the road, your first priority
  is to assess whether you can drive home. If roads are
  blocked or dangerous, be prepared to travel on foot, and
  use the items in this kit to ensure you stay safe during the
  journey.
- This kit can be disposable or even losable on your way home if needed. Your main goal should be to get home or get to a mutual meeting place.
- You could divide this into two different bags. One of which would include a blanket or sleeping bag if you are stranded which may not want to take with you if you have a short run to your home.

## **Stay-at-Home Emergency Kit**

Let's develop a **Stay-at-Home Emergency Kit** designed to sustain you for **3 to 6 months** in case of a long-term crisis or infrastructure failure. This kit will focus on food and water storage, sanitation, medical supplies, and essential tools, following popular strategies used by preppers. This comprehensive kit will ensure your household can survive without needing to leave home for extended periods. Keep in mind, as this can be a little expensive to get all at once, you can survive on one small meager meal a day. You can stretch things out and conserve a lot. Buy a little extra, here and there and begin

to build up your storage, even if it's just a few weeks. By then, local churches, FEMA and other groups would be of use by then if needed. But I would plan for the worst as often as possible.

#### 1. Long-Term Food Storage

A 3-6 month supply of food is the cornerstone of any prepper's stay-at-home kit. You need a mix of foods that are calorie-dense, nutritious, and have a long shelf life. Here are some key strategies:

#### **Popular Prepper Food Storage Tactics:**

- Canned Goods: Canned meats (chicken, beef, tuna), vegetables, fruits, beans, and soups are ideal because they last for years, are easy to store, and don't require refrigeration. Rotate through your canned goods regularly to keep them fresh.
- Bulk Dry Goods: Purchase bulk quantities of staples like rice, pasta, beans, lentils, oats, and wheat. These are inexpensive and have a long shelf life if stored properly. To maximize their longevity, consider vacuum-sealing them or storing them in Mylar bags with oxygen absorbers inside food-grade buckets.
- Freeze-Dried and Dehydrated Foods: Freeze-dried meals (like those made by Mountain House or ReadyWise) are lightweight, have a long shelf life (up to 25 years), and require minimal water for preparation. Dehydrated fruits, vegetables, and meats can also be stored for years when vacuum-sealed or placed in Mylar bags.
- **Home-Canning**: If you have a garden, consider canning your own fruits, vegetables, or even meats. Home-canning gives you control over your food supply, and with proper equipment, you can preserve foods for several years.

- Long-Term Cooking Oils: Fats are essential for nutrition, but they can go rancid over time. Store oils like olive oil, coconut oil, and ghee, as they have longer shelf lives than other types of fats. Consider powdered butter or powdered eggs as long-term alternatives.
- **Supplemental Protein Sources**: If you run out of fresh meat, alternative protein sources like canned fish, jerky, **powdered eggs**, and **protein powder** can be vital.

#### **Stockpile Essentials:**

- **Grains (rice, pasta, quinoa)**: 25-50 lbs each
- **Canned meats and fish**: 100-150 cans total (depending on family size)
- Canned vegetables and fruits: 200-300 cans total
- **Beans (dried and canned)**: 50-100 lbs of dried beans; 50+ cans
- **Dehydrated/freeze-dried meals**: 30-60 meals for easy preparation
- **Cooking essentials**: Salt, sugar, baking powder, flour, yeast (for bread-making), honey (long-lasting sweetener)

## 2. Water Storage and Purification

For long-term water storage, FEMA recommends a minimum of 1 gallon of water per person per day, which accounts for drinking and sanitation. For a family of four, that's approximately **120 gallons per month**, or **360-720 gallons** for a 3-6 month supply. Here are some water storage strategies:

### **Popular Prepper Water Storage Tactics:**

 Large Water Barrels: Store water in large 55-gallon food-grade barrels. These are an excellent way to ensure a stable supply, but be sure to keep them in a cool, dark place to avoid algae growth. Include a pump for easy access to the water.

- Water Bricks: These stackable containers hold 3-4 gallons each and are great for homes with limited space.
   They allow you to store water discreetly in closets, under beds, or in a garage.
- **Rotating Your Water Supply:** Water should be rotated every 6 months to ensure it's fresh. Use food-safe containers to avoid contamination.
- Water Purification Systems: In addition to stored water, have backup purification methods:
  - **Gravity-fed filters** (like the Berkey Water Filter) that don't rely on electricity
  - **Portable water filters** like LifeStraw or Sawyer
  - **Boiling** as a purification method
  - Water purification tablets for quick disinfection of small amounts

#### **Additional Water Collection Strategies:**

- Rainwater Harvesting: If your local laws allow it, set up a rainwater collection system using gutters and barrels.
   Rainwater can be purified and used for non-drinking purposes or purified for drinking.
- **DIY Greywater Recycling**: Water used for cleaning can be reused in gardens or for other non-potable purposes.

## 3. Cooking Without Electricity

If the grid goes down, cooking becomes a challenge. Here are some common strategies preppers use to ensure they can still cook without electricity:

 Propane or Butane Camping Stove: A small camping stove with a good supply of propane or butane can be used to cook meals indoors or outdoors. Be sure to ventilate properly.

- Rocket Stoves: Rocket stoves are highly efficient, portable wood-burning stoves that require minimal fuel.
   These are ideal for outdoor cooking, even with limited firewood.
- **Solar Oven**: Solar ovens allow you to cook food using the sun's energy, making them an eco-friendly and long-term solution. They work best in sunny climates.
- DIY Clay Pot Heater/Stove: Using terracotta pots and tea lights, you can create a basic heating and cooking system in a pinch.

## 4. Sanitation and Hygiene

Maintaining sanitation during a long-term crisis is vital to avoid illness. If water is scarce or plumbing is non-functional, here's what you need:

- **Toileting**: Have a **5-gallon bucket** with heavy-duty trash bags, and use **cat litter** or **sawdust** for odor control. This setup can act as a makeshift toilet if the plumbing fails.
- **Toilet Paper and Wet Wipes**: Stockpile toilet paper and baby wipes, or consider reusable cloth wipes for long-term sustainability.
- Soap and Hand Sanitizer: Keep a good supply of soap for handwashing, dishes, and bathing, as well as alcoholbased hand sanitizers for waterless cleaning.
- Bleach: Store unscented bleach for disinfecting surfaces and purifying water. You can use bleach to clean areas affected by waste or contaminants.
- Personal Hygiene Supplies: Stock up on toothpaste, deodorant, menstrual products, razors, and anything else needed for personal hygiene. Don't forget nail clippers and combs.

## 5. First-Aid and Medical Supplies

In a long-term crisis, access to medical help may be limited. A well-stocked first-aid kit is essential:

- **Comprehensive First-Aid Kit**: Include bandages, gauze, antiseptics, painkillers, and medical gloves. Make sure your kit has the necessary supplies for treating burns, cuts, sprains, and more severe injuries.
- Over-the-Counter Medications: Stockpile basic medications such as ibuprofen, acetaminophen, antihistamines, antacids, and anti-diarrheal medications.
- Prescription Medications: If you or family members rely on prescription medications, work with your doctor to build up an extra supply if possible.
- Medical Reference Guide: Have a first-aid book or survival medical manual on hand in case professional medical help is unavailable.
- Sanitation Supplies: Include face masks, disposable gloves, disinfecting wipes, and rubbing alcohol to sanitize hands and surfaces, especially in a contagious environment.

## 6. Defense and Security

Your home may become a target during long-term crises, especially if resources become scarce. Here's how to secure your home:

 Reinforce Doors and Windows: Strengthen your entry points by installing deadbolts, reinforcing door frames, and using window bars or security film.

- **Cameras and Motion Sensors**: If power is available, install security cameras or battery-powered motion detectors around your home to alert you of intruders.
- Self-Defense: Have non-lethal defense options like pepper spray, and consider securing legal firearms for protection (only if you are trained and comfortable using them).
   Keep any weapons secure and away from children.

## 7. Power and Light

Being without power for an extended period can be a major challenge. Here's how to keep your home lit and powered:

- Solar Power Chargers: Small solar panels can be used to charge essential devices like radios, flashlights, or phones. Look for foldable solar panels that can be used outdoors.
- Batteries and Rechargeable Devices: Stockpile plenty of batteries (AA, AAA, etc.) and invest in rechargeable devices that can be powered by solar chargers.
- LED Lanterns: Battery-powered LED lanterns provide long-lasting, bright light and are much safer than candles.
- **Candles**: While not ideal as a primary light source, candles can serve as a backup. Make sure to keep them in a safe, fireproof location.
- **Generators:** These can get a little pricey, but for a few hundred dollars at Harbor Freight, you can get a decent generator. Learn how to work it and make sure you have spare fuel on hand. Lowes and Home Depot sell storageable fuel in cans that are a ittle expensive but worth it.

# **Final Thoughts Regarding This List**

A **3-6 month stay-at-home kit** is a significant undertaking, but it will give you peace of mind knowing that you and your family can sustain yourselves through a long-term crisis. The key strategies used by preppers—such as rotating food, storing water properly, and investing in non-electric cooking methods—are time-tested and highly effective.

### Get to the Mountains Kit: Trailer as Basecamp

Your camping trailer provides a significant advantage in terms of comfort and preparedness. Since it can carry larger supplies, you can store additional food, tools, and comfort items. Here's a breakdown of what your trailer should contain to support long-term survival in the mountains:

#### **Key Items for Your Trailer:**

### 1. Water Storage and Filtration:

- **Water Storage Tanks**: Most trailers come with built-in water storage tanks. Ensure these are filled with potable water before heading out.
- Water Filters: Have a high-quality water filter (like the **Berkey** or **Katadyn** system) for filtering large amounts of water. Portable water filters (such as LifeStraw or Sawyer Mini) are great for on-thego water purification.
- Portable Water Containers: Collapsible water containers (5-gallon jugs) are useful for collecting water from nearby sources and can be used for drinking, cooking, and hygiene.

## 2. Food Storage and Cooking:

- Non-Perishable Foods: Stockpile canned goods, dried foods, and freeze-dried meals that can be easily rehydrated (think rice, pasta, beans, oatmeal). Don't forget comfort foods like coffee, tea, or dehydrated fruit.
- Cooking Equipment: Use propane for a gas stove, and always have extra fuel. Include lightweight cooking equipment like cast iron pans, a Dutch oven, and utensils.
- Camping Grill/Portable Stove: Keep a propane camping grill or portable stove on hand in case the trailer's built-in kitchen is unavailable or you want to cook outside.
- Solar Oven: A solar oven allows you to cook without fuel and is an ideal backup in sunny climates.

#### 3. Shelter and Comfort:

- Extra Blankets and Sleeping Bags: Cold weather in the mountains can be harsh. Store extra thermal blankets and sleeping bags rated for sub-freezing temperatures.
- Tents and Tarps: In case you need to set up an external shelter, keep tents and tarps in your trailer. This can also provide additional space or serve as a backup if the trailer becomes unusable.
- **Camp Furniture**: Lightweight foldable chairs, tables, and cots add comfort during extended stays.

## 4. Heating and Power:

- **Propane Heater**: If your trailer is not equipped with a reliable heater, pack a portable propane heater (such as **Mr. Heater**) to keep warm.
- Portable Solar Power System: A portable solar panel kit can power essential electronics, lights,

- and small appliances. Look for a system with multiple panels and a battery pack that can store power for nighttime use.
- Rechargeable Lanterns and Flashlights: Keep solar-rechargeable or battery-powered lights in the trailer. A headlamp is essential for hands-free lighting.

### 5. First-Aid and Medical Supplies:

- Comprehensive First-Aid Kit: Include bandages, antiseptics, pain relievers, and anything for emergency treatment, such as a trauma kit, splints, and tourniquets.
- Prescription Medications: If you or family members require medications, make sure you have enough stored for several weeks.

### 6. Communication and Navigation:

- Handheld Radios: Have a set of handheld radios to communicate with family or others in your party when you're spread out.
- Satellite Phone: In remote mountainous areas where cell service is unavailable, a satellite phone or Garmin InReach GPS can be invaluable for emergency communication.
- Physical Maps and Compass: Ensure you have topographical maps of the area, along with a reliable compass for navigation.

#### 7. Personal Protection and Defense:

• **Firearms**: If you're comfortable and trained, consider having a rifle or handgun for protection and hunting, along with appropriate ammunition.

- **Bear Spray or Pepper Spray**: In mountainous regions, wildlife like bears may be a threat. Bear spray is an effective deterrent.
- Multitool and Knives: A multitool and a fixedblade knife are essential for a range of survival tasks, from building shelter to preparing food.

## Get to the Mountains Kit: Backpacking Setup

I live near the mountains, in Utah and go camping often with our Fifth Wheel Trailer. This trailer is part of our plan but we may have to leave it behind. Currently used trailers that may be twenty years old and hardly used, are great buys! You may not need the full working luxury of a water heater, furnace or even stove! But having a trailer for shelter would be priceless in an emergency or bugout situation. This is where a large backpack would come in handy. If you have a similar situation and need to leave your trailer behind and head into the mountains on foot, your **backpack kit** should be lightweight but comprehensive enough to sustain you for up to two weeks. This kit assumes you're transitioning from your trailer to a remote location or heading directly into the mountains if the trailer isn't an option.

## **Key Items for Backpack Survival:**

## 1. Water Filtration and Hydration:

- Water Bladder or Bottles: A hydration bladder (like a CamelBak) fits easily into a backpack and allows you to carry up to 3 liters of water. Use lightweight water bottles as backups.
- Portable Water Filter: A LifeStraw or Sawyer
   Mini should always be in your pack to filter water
   from streams or lakes.

• **Water Purification Tablets**: These are a backup for water filtration if your filter fails or if the water is heavily contaminated.

#### 2. Food for Two Weeks:

- Freeze-Dried Meals: Prioritize lightweight, calorie-dense freeze-dried meals (Mountain House or Backpacker's Pantry). These are easy to pack and just need water to prepare.
- Energy Bars and Trail Mix: High-calorie, compact snacks like protein bars, trail mix, and jerky will keep your energy levels up during hiking or camping.
- Packable Cooking Kit: A small camping stove (like a Jetboil or MSR PocketRocket) and fuel canisters are perfect for boiling water and cooking on the go. Include a lightweight pot and a spork.

#### 3. Shelter and Warmth:

- **Lightweight Tent or Bivy Sack**: A compact, lightweight tent (under 5 lbs) or bivy sack is essential for shelter. Consider a tent that's easy to set up in a variety of terrains.
- Sleeping Bag: Choose a sleeping bag rated for cold weather (ideally down or synthetic insulation) that packs down small. Add a sleeping pad for insulation from the ground. I like KLYMIT stuff. You can find similar stuff on amazon for cheaper. This would include a "down filled sleeping bag" which are the warmest and lightest to carry.
- **Tent or Tarp and Paracord**: A tarp and paracord (at least 50 feet) can be used to set up additional shelter or for building rain covers.

 Thermal Blanket or Sleeping Bag Liner: These add warmth to your setup without adding much weight.

### 4. Fire-Starting Kit:

- **Fire Starters**: Pack waterproof matches, a lighter, and a magnesium fire starter for redundancy.
- **Tinder**: Bring cotton balls soaked in petroleum jelly, or carry pre-made tinder tabs, to help you start a fire quickly.

## 5. Clothing for All Weather Conditions:

- Layered Clothing: Pack moisture-wicking base layers, an insulating mid-layer (fleece or wool), and a waterproof outer layer. Bring extra socks and undergarments.
- **Thermal Hat and Gloves**: Cold mountain temperatures can set in quickly, so keep these in your pack.
- **Sturdy Hiking Boots**: Make sure your boots are broken in and comfortable for long-distance hiking in rough terrain.

## 6. Navigation and Safety:

- **Compass and Map**: A reliable compass and topographic map of the area will ensure you can navigate if GPS fails.
- GPS Device: A small, rugged GPS (like a Garmin GPSMAP or Garmin InReach Mini) is useful for navigation and emergency communication.
- **Whistle**: A whistle is crucial for signaling for help in the wilderness.

#### 7. First-Aid Kit:

- Compact First-Aid Kit: This should include bandages, antiseptic wipes, tweezers, pain relievers, and any medications you need.
- Blister Care: When hiking, blisters are inevitable.
   Pack moleskin, band-aids, and antibacterial ointment.

#### 8. Tools and Gear:

- **Multitool**: A multitool will help with tasks like cutting rope, opening food, or making repairs.
- **Fixed-Blade Knife**: A durable survival knife is invaluable for shelter building, fire-starting, and protection.
- **Lightweight Axe or Saw**: If you expect to be gathering firewood, consider packing a lightweight folding saw or compact hatchet.

## 9. Emergency and Signaling Gear:

- **Solar Charger**: Keep a small solar charger to power GPS devices or phones.
- **Signaling Mirror and Flares**: These can help you signal for help if needed.
- **Headlamp**: A rechargeable or battery-powered headlamp with extra batteries is essential for nighttime visibility.

# Packing and Strategy for Your Get to the Mountains Kit:

Ready-to-Grab Backpacks:- Ready-to-Grab
Backpacks: Keep large, well-organized backpacks ready
to go at all times, stored in a convenient spot like a garage
or near the door. Ensure everyone in your household has
their own pack tailored to their needs, and that the packs
are preloaded with essentials.

- Weight Distribution: When packing, keep the heaviest items close to your back to maintain balance while hiking. Distribute lighter items like clothing or blankets at the top and sides of the pack for easy access.
- **Flexibility**: The kit should be adaptable depending on the season and current conditions. In colder months, prioritize warmth, while in warmer months, emphasize water and sun protection. Regularly check and rotate out items like food and batteries to ensure everything remains functional.

This **Get to the Mountains Kit** ensures you have everything you need whether you're using your trailer as a basecamp or going on foot with a large backpack. The flexibility in preparing for both scenarios increases your chances of survival, no matter the situation. The key is to be ready to adapt and to have your supplies in place before an emergency occurs.

### The Importance of HAM Radio in Emergency Situations

In an emergency, when traditional forms of communication like cell phones and the internet may become unreliable or unavailable, **HAM (amateur) radio** serves as a lifeline for staying connected. These radios are affordable, portable, and versatile, making them an essential tool for anyone serious about preparedness. Here's why HAM radio is so important in a crisis:

## 1. HAM Radios Are Reliable When Other Systems Fail

In many disasters, cellular towers, internet infrastructure, and power grids are often the first to go offline. This leaves many without a way to communicate with the outside world. HAM radios, however, operate on their own independent frequencies and rely only on basic power sources, such as batteries or portable

solar panels. This allows them to function even when modern technology breaks down.

 Portability: For around \$30, you can purchase a portable HAM radio that fits in your backpack and doesn't rely on local infrastructure to work. This makes it an accessible tool for anyone, even if you're on foot or in remote locations.

#### 2. No License Needed to Listen or Use in Emergencies

While a license is required to transmit on HAM radio frequencies during normal conditions, **you do not need a license to own or listen** to HAM radios. In fact, these radios allow you to monitor emergency broadcasts, weather alerts, and communications from other HAM operators.

More importantly, in life-threatening emergencies, you are allowed to transmit on HAM frequencies without a license if it is a matter of survival. This flexibility makes HAM radio an invaluable tool for anyone, licensed or not, who may find themselves in a situation where communication is vital to survival.

# 3. Long-Distance Communication

Unlike most consumer-grade radios, which are limited to short ranges (like walkie-talkies), HAM radios can transmit across **long distances**. Depending on the equipment and conditions, you could potentially communicate with other operators hundreds of miles away, or even farther if using high-frequency bands or repeaters.

 Local and Global Reach: In a crisis, local communication is essential, but sometimes, connecting with people outside the disaster zone is even more critical. HAM radios allow for both. With a simple portable radio, you can link to local emergency networks or reach out to HAM operators in distant locations for assistance.

### 4. Community of Support

The HAM radio community is a well-established network of operators who are often prepared for emergency situations. In many cases, HAM operators volunteer during disasters to facilitate communication between emergency responders, shelters, and people in need. As a licensed operator with over 20 years of experience, you're already part of this valuable network.

Even if you're not licensed, just **listening** to experienced operators during an emergency can provide valuable information on what's happening, what areas to avoid, and where help is available.

## 5. Powering and Maintaining HAM Radios

Another key benefit of HAM radios is how easily they can be powered. Since they run on batteries, these radios can be charged using simple, off-grid solutions like:

- Solar Panels
- Hand-crank generators
- Battery packs

By ensuring you have a reliable way to charge your radio, you can maintain communication for days, weeks, or even longer during an emergency.

#### **Conclusion: A Must-Have Tool for Emergencies**

Given their reliability, ease of use, and affordability, HAM radios are a crucial tool for staying informed and connected during emergencies. At just around \$30 for a portable unit, they are an inexpensive yet powerful addition to any prepper's toolkit. You don't need a license to own or listen in, and in life-threatening situations, you're allowed to transmit without one.

For anyone preparing for potential disasters, a HAM radio is not just a tool—it's a lifeline. Whether you're using it to call for help, gather information, or connect with distant family members, HAM radio offers a level of security and communication that few other devices can match.

# **Part 4: Long-Term Survival**

When a disaster stretches beyond weeks and turns into months, the survival strategy must shift from short-term, reactive measures to sustainable, long-term solutions. Long-term survival isn't just about having enough food and water, but also maintaining your mental and physical health, securing resources, and managing relationships within your group or community. Here are the essential considerations for long-term urban or wilderness survival.

## 1. Dealing with Supply Chain Collapse

In a prolonged disaster, local and national supply chains can collapse, resulting in shortages of food, water, fuel, and medical supplies. To survive long-term, you must have a strategy for replenishing these essentials.

#### **Strategies for Securing Food:**

- **Gardening**: Establish a **survival garden** with fast-growing, nutritious plants. Consider growing vegetables like potatoes, beans, carrots, and leafy greens, which provide essential nutrients and can be grown in relatively small spaces. You can also grow herbs for both seasoning and medicinal purposes.
  - Container gardening: If space is limited, grow plants in containers on balconies, rooftops, or indoors. This is a practical solution for urban environments where traditional gardening isn't possible.
  - **Perennial plants**: Plant perennials like fruit trees, berry bushes, and asparagus. These provide food year after year without needing to be replanted.
- Foraging and Hunting: Learn to identify edible wild
  plants and animals in your area. For those living near
  forests or mountains, foraging for mushrooms, berries, and
  nuts or hunting small game like rabbits and squirrels can
  supplement your food supply.
  - **Fishing**: If near water, fishing can provide a steady source of protein. Keep a small, portable fishing kit handy.

#### **Bartering and Trading:**

 As the availability of resources becomes more limited, bartering will become an essential skill. Stockpile small, high-value items like batteries, alcohol, lighters, and medical supplies. These can be traded for food, fuel, or other goods you may run out of over time.

#### 2. Water Sustainability

Long-term survival requires consistent access to clean water, especially as your initial water supply runs low.

#### **Key Strategies for Water Procurement:**

- Rainwater Harvesting: Set up rain barrels or containers to collect rainwater. Make sure to use proper filtration and purification systems (such as gravity filters or UV purification) before drinking.
- **Finding Natural Water Sources**: In urban settings, natural water sources like rivers, ponds, or lakes can be vital. Be sure to locate these sources early, and always filter or boil water before drinking to prevent illness.
- Greywater Recycling: Use greywater (water from washing dishes or bathing) for non-drinking purposes, like flushing toilets or irrigating gardens. This helps conserve your clean water supply.

# 3. Managing Health and Hygiene

Health is one of the most vulnerable aspects of long-term survival. With limited access to medical professionals and hospitals, you'll need to manage both routine health issues and potential injuries.

#### **Health Management:**

• Staying Clean: Keeping clean is essential for preventing disease. Use baby wipes or sanitation cloths if water is scarce, and make sure to regularly wash hands, face, and body. Stock up on soap, hand sanitizer, and disinfecting wipes.  Toileting: If the sewage system fails, you'll need a plan for waste disposal. Set up an emergency toilet using a 5gallon bucket, trash bags, and kitty litter or sawdust for odor control.

#### First-Aid and Medical Care:

- Stocking Up on Medical Supplies: Ensure that your long-term first-aid kit includes items to treat cuts, burns, infections, and fractures. Over-the-counter medications such as pain relievers, anti-inflammatories, and antibiotics should be included.
- Home Remedies: Learn basic herbal remedies and firstaid techniques. Herbs like garlic, ginger, and echinacea can be used for treating infections, colds, and minor ailments. Be prepared to rely on these if pharmaceuticals become scarce.
- Mental Health: Prolonged stress and isolation can lead to psychological strain. It's crucial to have coping mechanisms like books, hobbies, and meaningful tasks to stay mentally engaged. Staying in touch with loved ones through HAM radio or other means can also boost morale.

## 4. Surviving Social Chaos

As resources become scarce, social order can break down. Looting, violence, and unrest can be common in extended survival scenarios, especially in urban areas.

#### **Strategies for Avoiding Conflict:**

Neighborhood Alliances: Building trust and alliances
with your neighbors can create a mutual defense
network. Work together to secure your homes, share
resources, and keep an eye on potential threats. Having a

- group means strength in numbers, and the ability to pool skills and resources.
- **Stay Low Profile**: As always, avoid drawing attention to yourself or your supplies. The more invisible and unremarkable you are, the less likely you are to become a target for theft or violence.

#### **Self-Defense:**

- Protecting Your Home: Secure doors and windows with reinforcements such as deadbolts, barricades, or plywood.
   Set up early warning systems like tripwires or motiondetecting alarms around your property.
- Weapons for Defense: If you are trained and comfortable, consider keeping non-lethal weapons like pepper spray or tasers. Firearms may be necessary in extreme situations, but it's essential that you know how to use and maintain them safely.

### 5. Long-Term Shelter Solutions

If your home becomes compromised or unsafe, you may need to seek alternative shelter.

### **Strategies for Securing Long-Term Shelter:**

- **Bug-Out Locations**: Identify potential **bug-out locations** ahead of time, such as cabins, wilderness areas, or a trusted friend's rural property. These locations should be pre-stocked with some basic supplies to reduce the amount you'll need to carry with you.
- Building Off-Grid Shelters: If necessary, you may need to construct a more permanent off-grid shelter. Study basic survival shelter construction techniques, such as

building with natural materials (wood, stone) or setting up **canvas tents** with wood stoves.

# **Conclusion: Long-Term Survival Is About Adaptation**

In a prolonged crisis, flexibility and adaptability are key. The strategies outlined in this section focus on managing limited resources, maintaining physical and mental health, and securing safety in the long term. The ability to adapt to new circumstances, whether it's finding water or handling social unrest, will make the difference between surviving and thriving in a long-term emergency.

## **Part 5: Rebuilding After the Crisis**

Surviving a prolonged disaster or crisis is only the beginning. Once the immediate threats subside, the focus must shift to rebuilding your life and your community. This phase is often as challenging as the crisis itself because resources are scarce, infrastructures are damaged, and people are psychologically and physically drained. Rebuilding requires resilience, collaboration, and a willingness to adapt to a new reality.

## 1. Assessing the Damage and Immediate Priorities

Once the initial danger has passed, the first step is to assess your surroundings and take stock of your situation. You need to make informed decisions about whether it's safe to return home, how to secure shelter, and how to begin restoring order.

#### **Steps for Assessment:**

- Inspecting Your Home or Shelter: If you've been sheltering elsewhere or in temporary conditions, inspect your home or primary shelter for damage. Check for structural issues, broken windows, water damage, and signs of looting. Make any immediate repairs to prevent further degradation of the property.
- **Health Check**: Ensure that everyone in your household is physically okay. This is the time to deal with any lingering injuries, sickness, or malnutrition that may have been ignored during the crisis.
- Securing Basic Resources: Once you've secured your shelter, focus on securing food, water, and medical supplies. Make sure you have enough to sustain yourself and your group for the foreseeable future while you work toward rebuilding.

# 2. Community Efforts: Rebuilding Together

Rebuilding a functioning society requires cooperation and collaboration. This is where forming and maintaining relationships with your neighbors or community becomes essential.

#### **Rebuilding Infrastructure:**

- Work Together on Repairs: You may need to work with neighbors to restore essential services like access to clean water, electricity, or communications. In smaller communities, group efforts to repair roads, bridges, and homes can accelerate recovery.
- **Form a Bartering or Sharing Network**: As supplies remain limited, pooling resources and forming a local **barter system** can help everyone meet their needs.

Trading food, water, or skills (like construction or medical expertise) with others will strengthen the community and keep everyone more secure.

#### **Creating a Sustainable Community:**

- **Start Community Gardens**: For long-term food sustainability, starting a **community garden** allows neighbors to grow food together and share in the harvest. This reduces dependency on external supply chains that may still be down.
- **Establish Local Security**: Collaborating with trusted community members to form a local security team can ensure the safety of everyone as the region slowly recovers. This group should be responsible for keeping an eye out for threats and coordinating with any larger relief efforts that come in.

### 3. Rebuilding Your Life and Finances

Rebuilding isn't just about the physical world around you; it's also about returning to a functional, stable life. Financial recovery, finding work, and adjusting to a new way of living are crucial next steps.

#### **Rebuilding Financially:**

- Accessing Emergency Aid: Governments and aid organizations often provide financial support, food, and shelter assistance after a disaster. If federal or local agencies are operational, apply for these programs to cover immediate financial needs. FEMA, for example, has a Disaster Assistance Program that offers funds for home repairs, temporary housing, and other essential needs.
- **Restarting Your Job or Business**: Depending on the state of the economy post-crisis, returning to work or restarting

your business might take time. Seek out temporary work in rebuilding efforts, or barter your skills within the community. Some businesses may be in high demand post-crisis, such as construction, medical, or agricultural services.

#### Adjusting to a New Economy:

- Local Currencies and Bartering: If formal economies are slow to return, local currencies or barter systems might emerge as replacements. Be ready to trade goods and services instead of relying solely on cash or digital payments.
- Rebuilding Financial Resilience: As you rebuild, create a financial buffer for future crises. Save resources and materials, build a reserve of non-perishable goods, and invest in equipment or skills that will keep you selfsufficient.

## 4. Psychological Recovery and Mental Health

A prolonged crisis can take a toll on mental health. The psychological impact of surviving a disaster—whether from loss of loved ones, isolation, or constant fear—requires attention. Mental resilience is as important as physical survival.

### **Coping Mechanisms:**

- **Rebuilding Social Networks**: Isolation during a crisis can lead to depression, anxiety, or PTSD. Rebuilding relationships with friends, family, and community members is crucial for mental health. Regular social interaction helps normalize life and reestablish a sense of belonging.
- **Therapeutic Practices**: Even in survival situations, finding ways to engage in activities you enjoy—whether

it's reading, crafting, or physical exercise—can help restore your mental well-being. If available, professional counseling or group therapy can provide additional support.

 Rituals of Healing: Some communities find strength in holding communal healing activities such as shared meals, memorials for lost loved ones, or community projects like rebuilding a park or school.

### 5. Preparing for Future Disasters

Once you've rebuilt a degree of stability, it's important to prepare for the next potential crisis. The lessons you've learned from surviving a disaster should be incorporated into your new preparedness strategy.

#### **Reinforce Your Supplies and Skills:**

- Replenish and Expand Your Supplies: Rebuild your emergency kits, stockpiles, and supplies. Learn from what worked well and what didn't during the disaster. Ensure your supplies are organized and easily accessible in case another crisis strikes.
- Refine Your Evacuation Plans: Update your evacuation and survival plans based on what you experienced. If you had to evacuate before, make improvements to your routes and your bug-out kit.
- Learn New Skills: The ability to grow food, repair buildings, provide medical care, and communicate during emergencies are invaluable. Use your rebuilding period as a chance to learn and practice these skills so that you're better prepared for the future.

#### **Support Your Community's Resilience:**

- Prepare as a Group: Strengthen ties with your community to create disaster plans together. Encourage neighbors to keep their own stockpiles of supplies and work together on larger projects like water filtration systems, community gardens, or solar power installations.
- Contribute to the Next Generation of Preparedness: Share the lessons you've learned with your children, neighbors, and friends. Encourage a culture of preparedness so that your community is more resilient in the face of future crises.

# Conclusion: Rebuilding Requires Resilience and Unity

Rebuilding after a disaster is an ongoing process that requires patience, resilience, and a collective effort. While the physical rebuilding of homes and infrastructure is vital, the mental, emotional, and financial recovery is just as important. By focusing on cooperation, preparation, and community, you can rebuild stronger and more prepared for whatever challenges may lie ahead.

# What Have We Learned From Previous Catastrophies

**Hurricane Katrina** is one of the most studied disasters in U.S. history, and it revealed many critical lessons about emergency preparedness, response, and recovery. During this time, I was employed as an Insurance Adjuster and was able to see firsthand what Katrina had done as I was assigned there for a large portion of the recovery. The devastation it caused in 2005, particularly in

New Orleans, highlighted both the importance of preparation and the failures of existing systems to cope with large-scale emergencies. Here are some key case studies and lessons learned from the event:

# 1. Communication Breakdown and Delayed Response

One of the most significant failures during Hurricane Katrina was the breakdown in communication between federal, state, and local agencies. Emergency responders could not effectively coordinate their efforts, which led to **significant delays in rescue operations and the distribution of aid**.

 Lesson Learned: Communication is crucial in disaster management. Agencies at all levels must have backup systems for communication that don't rely solely on cell towers or the internet, both of which failed during Katrina. Today, many preppers and emergency planners recommend using HAM radios, satellite phones, and community-based communication networks to ensure reliable contact during a disaster.

# 2. Inadequate Evacuation Plans and Vulnerable Populations

Before Katrina made landfall, the city's evacuation orders were issued late, and transportation resources were not adequately provided for the city's most vulnerable populations, including those without cars, the elderly, and disabled. Thousands of people were trapped in the city, many of them forced to seek shelter in places like the **Superdome**, which was ill-prepared for the numbers and conditions that followed.

• Lesson Learned: Emergency evacuation plans must take into account vulnerable populations who may lack the resources or ability to evacuate on their own. Cities need detailed evacuation strategies that include provisions for people without personal transportation and those who require medical assistance. Pre-established evacuation routes, public transportation options, and designated shelters are critical to ensuring that everyone can leave safely.

# 3. The Importance of Self-Sufficiency and Community Preparedness

In the immediate aftermath of Hurricane Katrina, many people were left without food, water, or medical supplies for days. Government aid was delayed, and many residents had to rely on their own supplies or assistance from neighbors. This exposed the weaknesses in the public's general level of preparedness.

Lesson Learned: Self-sufficiency is essential in a crisis.
 After Hurricane Katrina, there was a rise in the popularity of preparedness planning, with more people realizing the importance of having emergency kits with enough food, water, and medical supplies for at least 72 hours, if not longer. Preppers recommend storing these items in both homes and vehicles, as well as making sure communities are informed about local resources and mutual aid networks.

# 4. The Need for Long-Term Recovery and Community Rebuilding

Katrina revealed that recovery doesn't end when the storm passes. **Long-term rebuilding** took years, and many communities were slow to recover, particularly low-income neighborhoods. The loss

of homes, businesses, and infrastructure left thousands displaced and struggling to rebuild their lives. Some people never returned to New Orleans, while others faced long waits for insurance payouts or federal aid.

Lesson Learned: Effective long-term recovery planning requires federal, state, and community collaboration.
 Communities that have plans in place for rebuilding homes, restoring essential services, and providing economic support will recover faster. Mutual aid networks and community-based recovery efforts, such as bartering systems and local rebuilding initiatives, proved to be highly effective during Katrina's aftermath. Preppers should focus on building local support networks to facilitate long-term recovery in the event of a major disaster.

## 5. Critical Role of Mental Health Support

Katrina also underscored the long-term psychological impact disasters can have on survivors. Many residents suffered from **post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD)**, depression, and anxiety due to the loss of homes, loved ones, and the general sense of security.

 Lesson Learned: Long-term mental health support is as important as physical recovery. Communities and individuals must prioritize psychological care, whether through therapy, support groups, or simply fostering strong community relationships. Having meaningful activities like rebuilding projects and group initiatives helps with emotional recovery and provides a sense of purpose post-disaster.

## **Conclusion: Key Takeaways from Hurricane Katrina**

Hurricane Katrina showed us that **preparedness**, **communication**, and **community collaboration** are critical to both surviving a disaster and rebuilding afterward. Katrina's lessons resonate today with individuals and communities as they work to strengthen their resilience against future crises.

Preppers and emergency planners learned to:

- **Enhance communication systems** through HAM radios and satellite phones.
- **Develop better evacuation plans** that prioritize vulnerable populations.
- **Prioritize self-sufficiency** by having enough food, water, and supplies for extended periods.
- **Focus on long-term recovery** by fostering community networks and mental health support.

Hurricane Katrina remains a powerful reminder that preparation is not just about survival in the moment, but also about rebuilding in the long term.

# **Conclusion: A Call to Preparedness**

As we've discussed throughout this book, surviving a disaster—whether it's a sudden attack, a natural catastrophe, or a societal collapse—requires more than just reacting in the moment. True preparedness is about adopting a proactive mindset and a long-term plan that can see you and your loved ones through any crisis.

Disasters like Hurricane Katrina, along with more recent events, have shown that relying solely on governmental or external aid is not enough. Infrastructure can fail, resources can dwindle, and social order can break down. In these moments, the people who are prepared—those who have taken the time to develop self-

reliance and resilience—are the ones most likely to come out stronger on the other side.

### **Preparedness is Personal**

Preparedness begins with the individual. Whether you're living in a major city, on the edge of a wilderness, or somewhere in between, the steps you take today can significantly improve your chances of survival tomorrow. This means:

- Developing and maintaining emergency kits: Your
  vehicle kit, home kit, and wilderness kit are your first lines
  of defense. Ensuring they are stocked with water, food,
  medical supplies, and survival tools puts you ahead of the
  curve.
- Learning practical survival skills: Knowledge is power
  in a crisis. Learn how to purify water, find or grow food,
  build shelter, and defend yourself. These skills will be
  invaluable whether you're sheltering in place or heading
  to the mountains.
- **Understanding your environment**: The hazards you face in a major city are different from those you'll encounter in the wilderness. Adapt your preparedness strategy to suit your environment. This could mean identifying evacuation routes in the city, knowing where to find natural water sources, or understanding how to fortify your home.

## **Preparedness is Communal**

Survival is not only about individual resilience—it's about community. In long-term survival situations, isolation can make you vulnerable, whereas strong communities thrive by pooling resources, sharing knowledge, and protecting each other.

- Build relationships: Strengthen ties with your neighbors and local networks. A cohesive group can offer security, bartering opportunities, and shared labor for repairs or growing food. This becomes especially important in the rebuilding phase after a crisis has passed.
- Stay informed and communicate: Whether through HAM radio networks, satellite phones, or local alerts, maintaining communication during and after a disaster is crucial. It helps you stay connected to both your community and to outside resources, allowing you to adapt quickly as situations evolve.

#### **Preparedness is Continuous**

Preparedness is not a one-time event. It is an ongoing process of **learning, refining, and adapting**. The more you invest in your preparedness now, the better equipped you'll be to face the unexpected. This includes:

- Rotating supplies: Make sure your food, water, and medical supplies are always fresh. This includes regularly checking expiration dates and replenishing items that are used.
- Learning from each experience: Every crisis brings new challenges and lessons. Whether you've gone through a small blackout or a full-scale evacuation, take time to review what worked, what didn't, and how you can improve next time.
- Training: Keep honing your skills. Attend workshops on wilderness survival, first aid, or HAM radio operation.
   Stay informed about new survival tools, techniques, and strategies.

### **Preparedness is a Mindset**

At its core, preparedness is a mindset. It's about staying calm, flexible, and resourceful when disaster strikes. It's about having a plan, but also being willing to adapt when that plan doesn't go perfectly. The most resilient people are those who can think creatively, act decisively, and maintain hope even in the darkest times.

# **Final Thoughts: A Call to Preparedness**

The world is unpredictable. Whether we face natural disasters, technological failures, or human conflict, being prepared is about more than just surviving—it's about thriving in the face of adversity. By developing a preparedness plan, building self-reliance, and strengthening your community, you are setting yourself up not only to endure a crisis but to emerge from it stronger, smarter, and more resilient.

Preparedness is not just a series of actions you take; it's a way of life that enables you to face uncertainty with confidence and clarity. The future may be uncertain, but with the right mindset and tools, you can meet any challenge head-on.

This concludes the book's journey through preparing for, surviving, and rebuilding after a disaster. The key to it all? Stay prepared, stay adaptable, and stay resilient.

### **Bonus Survival Checklist**

Here's a quick reference checklist of essential items to include in your survival kits, categorized for ease of planning:

#### Water & Hydration:

- **Water storage** (1 gallon per person per day)
- Water purification tablets or filters (LifeStraw, Sawyer Mini)
- Collapsible water containers
- **Rainwater collection system** (barrels, tarps)

## **Food & Cooking:**

- **Non-perishable food** (canned goods, rice, beans, pasta)
- Freeze-dried meals (Mountain House, ReadyWise)
- Protein bars, trail mix, jerky
- Manual can opener
- Portable stove or grill (propane-powered)
- **Fuel for stove** (propane or butane)
- **Solar oven** (optional)
- **Cooking utensils** (pots, pans, spork)
- **Portable cooking kit** (Jetboil, MSR PocketRocket)

#### **Shelter & Warmth:**

- Tent or bivy sack
- **Sleeping bags** (rated for cold weather)
- Emergency thermal blankets
- **Tarp and paracord** (for shelter building)
- **Portable heater** (propane or battery-operated)
- Extra blankets

#### First Aid & Medical:

- Comprehensive first-aid kit (bandages, antiseptic, pain relievers)
- **Prescription medications** (supply for 2 weeks)
- Medical gloves, gauze, trauma kit
- Blister care supplies
- Antibiotics, anti-inflammatories, antihistamines

#### **Tools & Equipment:**

- **Multitool** (Leatherman, Swiss Army knife)
- Fixed-blade knife
- **Firestarter kit** (matches, lighter, magnesium fire starter)
- **Flashlights** (with extra batteries or solar-powered)
- **Headlamp** (rechargeable or battery-powered)
- Duct tape
- Fishing kit
- Small axe or folding saw

## **Clothing:**

- Weather-appropriate layered clothing (moisturewicking base layer, fleece mid-layer, waterproof outer layer)
- Sturdy boots or hiking shoes
- **Hat and gloves** (thermal for cold weather)
- Extra socks and undergarments
- Waterproof jacket

## **Hygiene & Sanitation:**

- Soap, hand sanitizer
- Toilet paper and wet wipes

- **5-gallon bucket** (for waste, with heavy-duty trash bags and sawdust or cat litter for odor control)
- Feminine hygiene products
- Toothpaste, toothbrushes, razors

#### **Communication & Navigation:**

- **HAM radio** (Baofeng UV-5R or similar)
- Hand-crank radio or battery-powered radio
- Compass and maps (topographical if heading to wilderness)
- Whistle for signaling
- Emergency flares
- **Portable solar charger** (for GPS, radios, and phones)

## **Self-Defense & Security:**

- Pepper spray or bear spray
- **Firearm and ammunition** (if trained and comfortable)
- Reinforcement for doors/windows (home kit)
- Motion detectors or alarms (optional)

### Power & Light:

- **Solar power bank** (for charging devices)
- **LED lanterns** (solar or battery-powered)
- Candles and matches (backup)
- Extra batteries

This checklist gives you a solid foundation for your survival kits, whether you're preparing for short-term emergencies or long-term

survival. Each item is vital for different survival scenarios, from staying at home to bugging out into the wilderness.

#### **Books and Guides:**

# 1. "The Survival Medicine Handbook" by Dr. Joseph Alton and Amy Alton

 A comprehensive guide on handling medical emergencies during disasters when professional care may not be available. It covers trauma, illness, and hygiene during long-term crises.

## 2. "The Prepper's Blueprint" by Tess Pennington

 This book covers the basics of preparedness, from short-term emergencies to long-term survival. It focuses on self-sufficiency, including water, food, and shelter strategies.

## 3. "When All Hell Breaks Loose" by Cody Lundin

 A survival manual that combines humor with practical advice for surviving major disasters.
 Lundin focuses on human instincts, psychological preparedness, and survival skills.

## 4. "SAS Survival Guide" by John 'Lofty' Wiseman

 Written by a former SAS soldier, this guide covers everything from urban survival to wilderness tactics, including navigation, first aid, and shelter building.

# 5. "Nuclear War Survival Skills" by Cresson H. Kearny

 This guide focuses specifically on surviving nuclear fallout and radiation. It offers practical advice on building shelters and managing food and water in nuclear disaster scenarios.

#### **Online Courses and Tutorials:**

## 1. FEMA's Emergency Management Institute

- FEMA offers free online courses on disaster preparedness through their Community
   Emergency Response Team (CERT) program.
   This training covers basic emergency response, first aid, and community coordination.
- Website: FEMA CERT

#### 2. The Red Cross

- The Red Cross offers various first-aid and disaster preparedness courses online and in-person, helping individuals learn essential life-saving skills.
- Website: American Red Cross Training

## 3. HAM Radio Licensing and Resources

- For those interested in getting licensed for HAM radio, ARRL (American Radio Relay League) offers resources and online courses on HAM radio operation, including how to get licensed.
- Website: ARRL Licensing Information

## 4. Survival Courses by Sigma 3 Survival School

 This school offers in-person and online wilderness survival courses that cover everything from primitive fire-starting to advanced wilderness navigation.

Website: <u>Sigma 3 Survival School</u>

# **Websites and Communities:**

#### 1. The Survival Podcast

- A well-established podcast that covers everything from prepping and homesteading to financial survival in a post-crisis world. Hosted by Jack Spirko, it includes interviews and practical advice.
- Website: The Survival Podcast

## 2. Ready.gov

- The official government site for disaster preparedness. It provides resources and guides on how to prepare for various emergencies, including hurricanes, floods, and power outages.
- Website: Ready.gov

## 3. The Prepper Journal

- A comprehensive blog and resource hub for preppers. It offers detailed articles on urban survival, food storage, and long-term sustainability practices.
- Website: The Prepper Journal

#### 4. Off Grid Survival

 A website dedicated to self-reliance, offering articles on bug-out bags, water filtration, selfdefense, and more. It's a great resource for survivalists and preppers alike.

Website: Off Grid Survival

## **YouTube Channels:**

### 1. Canadian Prepper

 This channel covers prepping, survival gear reviews, and tips on long-term sustainability. It offers practical advice for both beginners and advanced preppers.

• YouTube: <u>Canadian Prepper</u>

## 2. City Prepping

 Focused on urban survival and preparedness, this channel provides information on how to prepare for disasters while living in a city environment.

• YouTube: <u>City Prepping</u>

# 3. Bear Independent

 A prepper-focused channel that covers tactical preparedness, homesteading, and communitybuilding.

• YouTube: <u>Bear Independent</u>

# **Apps for Emergency Preparedness:**

#### 1. Zello

 A push-to-talk app that allows you to communicate using your phone like a walkie-talkie. It's extremely useful in areas with spotty cell service or during emergencies.

## 2. American Red Cross Emergency App

 This app gives real-time alerts about local emergencies and provides instructions on how to prepare for different types of disasters.

# 3. HAM Radio Apps

 Apps like **EchoLink** allow licensed HAM operators to connect with other HAM radio users through their mobile devices.

#### **About the Author**

Andrew North is a U.S. Army veteran, entrepreneur, and seasoned survivalist with over two decades of experience in disaster preparedness. Andrew enlisted in the Army in 1993, serving for eight years and receiving an honorable discharge. During his military career, he developed vital survival and emergency response skills, which he has continued to refine throughout his life.

After his time in the Army, Andrew spent nearly ten years as an **Insurance Adjuster**, specializing in catastrophic storms and damage assessment. This work gave him firsthand experience with natural disasters and how they affect urban and rural areas. It also solidified his understanding of the importance of being prepared for large-scale emergencies.

For the past 20+ years, Andrew has been a successful entrepreneur, founding and running various businesses. His experiences living in major metropolitan areas, combined with his career in both the military and the insurance industry, have informed his decision to move to a rural environment, where he and his family can live more self-sufficiently.

Married with seven children, Andrew now focuses on sharing his knowledge of preparedness and survival through his writing and community work. In "Survival Strategies for an Attack Against America", he draws on his diverse background to provide readers with practical, real-world strategies for surviving and thriving during major disasters, both in cities and in rural areas.

